
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, April 28, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Stack.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 9

Public Hearing - April 14, 2015
Regular Meeting - April 14, 2015

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 605 Wallace Road, BL11079 (Z15-0003) - Robert John Volk & Gwendlyn
Genevive Miller

10 - 10

To give Bylaw No. 11079 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property.

4.2 BL11077 (OCP14-0002) - Amendments to Chapter 14, Urban Design DP
Guidelines

11 - 13

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11077 second and third readings in order to amend the
Official Community Plan to clarify Development Permit Guidelines in Limited
Industrial areas.

4.3 BL11082 (TA14-0001) - Amendment to Section 15, Industrial Zones 14 - 18

To give Bylaw No. 11082 second and third readings in order to amend Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.



6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 293-297 Bernard Avenue (Unit 1500 Water Street), LL15-0002 - Viewcrest
Estates Ltd.

19 - 31

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council's support for a proposed change to an existing Liquor Primary
license.

6.2 267-271 Bernard Avenue (Unit 271 Bernard Avenue), LL15-0004 - Dutchcad
B.I.L. Investments Ltd.

32 - 47

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after
midnight and for a Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement for a food
primary establishment located on the subject property.

6.3 2986-3030 Pandosy Street, LL14-0017 - AD Sopa Holdings Inc. 48 - 66

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after
midnight and for a Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement for a new
food primary establishment to be located on the subject property

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 1290 Bothe Road, DVP15-0014 - Cheryl Rogers 67 - 81

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a side yard setback variance for an addition.

7.2 845 Bernard Avenue, DVP15-0046 - Wendy Marcolli 82 - 93

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a variance to the height of an accessory building.



7.3 1480 Guisachan Place, DVP15-0037 - Andrew & Joan Marceau 94 - 105

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the rear yard setback.

7.4 1502 & 1506 Sutherland Avenue, DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 - Nor-Can Ventures
Ltd.

106 - 149

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for a
phased mixed use commercial and residential building as well as an expanded
car wash.

7.5 2422 Richter Street, DVP15-0039 - David & Janet Garland 150 - 161

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the rear yard setback.

7.6 1539-1541 Bedford Avenue, 1507-1511 Dickson Avenue and 1517-1521 Dickson
Avenue, BL11051 (Z14-0050) - Dickson Avenue Holdings Ltd.

162 - 162

To adopt Bylaw No. 11051 in order to rezone the subject property.

7.7 1539-1541 Bedford Avenue, 1507-1511 Dickson Avenue & 1517-1521 Dickson
Avenue, DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 - Dickson Avenue Holdings Ltd.

163 - 191

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To review the form and character Development Permit for a multi-family
apartment building, and to consider five variances to the Zoning Bylaw.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11079 
Z15-0003 – Robert Volk and Gwendlyn Miller  

605 Wallace Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 5, Section 35, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 18566, located on Wallace 
Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RR3 – Rural Residential 3 zone to the RR3c – Rural 
Residential 3 with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 13th day of April, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

10



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11077 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14–0002 
Amendments to Chapter 14 – Urban Design DP Guidelines  

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 5.8 – Urban Design DP Area Designation of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new 
Map 5.8 – Urban Design DP Area Designation as outlined in Schedule “A” attached; 
 

2. AND THAT Chapter 14 – Urban Design DP Guidelines, A. Comprehensive 
Development Permit Area (Multiple unit Residential, Commercial and Industrial 
Design Guidelines be amended by adding a new Section 18.0 Transitional Industrial 
in its appropriate location the following: 
 
“18.0 Transitional Industrial 

In areas designated for Industrial – Limited use, these guidelines must be considered as 
well as all other guidelines in this section.  
 
18.1 Industrial development adjacent to residential land uses must be planned, 

landscaped and screened to maintain the privacy of residential uses.  

 

18.2 Where new industrial development is occurring adjacent to residential uses, 

window openings shall be placed to reduce the opportunity for overlook and be 

offset from residential windows.  

 

18.3 Unfinished concrete block shall not be used as an exterior building material for 

principal facades or where the façade faces a residential land use.  

 

18.4 Where loading doors face the street, they shall be set back from the main 

building plane.  

 

18.5 The primary entrance of the main building on site should face the roadway. 

  

18.6 Where security concerns limit windows and other openings, building design 

should employ other design techniques to avoid creating long blank walls.  

 

18.7 Rooftop screening of mechanical and electrical equipment must be provided 

using materials consistent with the treatment of principal facades. 

11



 
18.8 All lighting shall be oriented facing the site, pointed in a downward direction 

and constructed at the lowest practical elevation to minimize light trespass 

over surrounding properties.  

 

18.9 Tall, broadcast or flood lights are not permitted.  

 

18.10 Where possible, parking and outdoor storage should be located behind buildings 

or other structures. Where parking and storage is not behind buildings, it must 

be screened with landscaping or fencing. 

  

18.11 Unpaved parking and storage surfaces should be made dust free through design 

or treatment.”  

3. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this  13th day of April, 2015. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 

 
 

12



Schedule “A” 
 

  

13



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11082 
TA14-0001 – Amendment to Section 15-Industrial Zones 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 15 – Industrial Zones, 15.6 I6 – 
Low-Impact Transitional Industrial (Liquor Primary) be amended by: 
 
a) Adding to 15.6.1 Purpose, after the first sentence the following:  “Uses should be 

primarily indoors, with limited outdoor storage behind extensive buffering or 
screening.”; 
 

b) Adding in its appropriate location to 15.6.2 Principal Uses “Business Support 
Services” and “Outdoor Storage” and renumber subsequent sub-paragraphs; 

 
c) Deleting from 15.6.2 Principal Uses “Food Primary Establishment” and “Liquor 

Primary Establishment, minor” and renumber subsequent sub-paragraphs; 
 
d) Adding to 15.6.3 Secondary Uses a new sub-paragraph “d) secondary suite within 

single dwelling housing” in its appropriate location; 
 
e) Deleing 15.6.5 Development Regulations, in its entirety that reads:  
  

a) The maximum floor area ratio is 1.0. 
 
b) The maximum site coverage is 60% including buildings, driveways and 

parking areas. 
 
c) The maximum height is as follows: 

 Lesser of 2 ½ storeys or 9.5 m for residential buildings and structures. 
 Lesser of 3 storeys or 14.0 m for industrial buildings and structures. 

 
d) The minimum front yards are as follows:  

 4.5 m for all buildings and structures. 
 9.0 m from a garage or carport having vehicular entry from the front. 
 6.0 m for portions of industrial buildings and structures greater than two 
storeys or 9.5 m in height. 

 
e) The minimum side yards are as follows: 

 3.0 m for residential buildings and structures. 
 0.0 m for industrial buildings and structures, except when adjacent to a 
residential land use it is 3.0 m for a one storey industrial building or 
structure (not to exceed 4.5 m in height) and 7.5 m for industrial 
buildings and structures greater than one storey in height. 
 In all cases, not less than 4.5 m from a flanking street. 

 
f) The minimum rear yards are as follows: 

 7.5 m for residential buildings and structures. 
 0.0 m for industrial buildings and structures, except when adjacent to a 
residential land use it is 30.0 m” 
 

14



And replace it with a new 15.6.5 Development Regulations that reads: 
 
“a)   The maximum site coverage is 50%. 
 
b) The maximum height is as follows: 

 Lesser of 2 ½ storeys or 9.5 m for residential buildings and structures 

 Lesser of 2 ½ storeys or 9.5 m for industrial buildings and structures. 

 No more than 4.8 m for accessory buildings or structures. 
 

c) The minimum front yards are as follows: 

 4.5 m for all buildings and structures. 

 6.0 m from a garage or carport having vehicular entry from the front. 
 

d) The minimum side yards are as follows: 

 3.0 m for residential buildings and structures. 

 4.5 m for industrial buildings and structures, except it is: 
o 7.5 m where the side yard is adjacent to a non-industrial future 

land use designation. 
 

e) The minimum rear yards are as follows: 

 7.5 m for residential buildings and structures. 

 7.5 m for industrial buildings and structures, except it is:  
o 30.0 m where the rear yard is adjacent to a non-industrial future 

land use designation.” 
 

f) Deleing 15.6.6 Other Regulations sub-paragraph c) in its entirety that reads “Drive in 
food services are not a permitted form of development.”  
 

g) Deleing 15.6.7 Building massing and design in its entirety that reads: 
 
“15.6.7 Building massing and design 

  
a) Buildings shall be oriented to prominently address the street and shall 

include street-facing, human-scale elements including windows and 
identifiable pedestrian entrance doors. Glazing on the principal façade 
should amount to not less than 30% of the total façade. 

 
b) Façade design should incorporate elements and style from commercial 

and/or residential buildings, as opposed to purely industrial/utilitarian 
design. 

 
c) Front façade design should promote no more than a two storey 

presence. Higher portions of the building should be set back and finished 
with different colour(s) and/or material(s) that the first two storeys. 

 
d) Where new industrial development is occurring adjacent to residential 

uses, window openings shall be placed to reduce the opportunity for 
overlook and should be offset in plan from residential windows. 

 
e) Unfinished concrete block shall not be used as an exterior building 

material for principal facades or when the façade faces a residential land 
use. 

 

15



f) Rooftop screening of mechanical and electrical equipment shall be 
provided using materials consistent with the treatment of principal 
facades.  

 
g) When loading doors occur on street facing facades they shall be set back 

from the main building plane and articulated in a manner that 
compliments the building façade. 

 
h) Signage shall be limited to discrete sign band areas on the building 

and/or low level free standing signage areas incorporated into the front 
yard landscaping. Large areas of signage shall not dominate the front 
façade of the building.” 

 
h) Deleing 15.6.8 Light, noise, dust, odour and emissions in its entirety that reads: 

 
“15.6.8 Light, noise, dust, odour and emissions 
 

a) Energy efficient light sources (e.g. LED) and energy sources (e.g. solar) 
are encouraged. 

 
b) All lighting shall be oriented such that it faces into the site, is downward 

directional, and is constructed at the lowest elevation practical for the 
intended application so as to minimize light trespass onto neighbouring 
properties.  

 
c) All activities resulting in dust, odour, noise or other emissions must take 

place inside a structure designed to contain said emission. Building 
ventilation must adequately remove/filter the emission (e.g. dust or odour) 
and not simply expel it from the building. 

 
d) Tall, broadcast or flood light sources are not permitted. 
 
e) Outdoor paging or sound broadcast systems are not permitted.” 

 
i) Deleing 15.6.9 Landscaping, buffering and parking in its entirety that reads: 

 
“15.6.9 Landscaping, buffering and parking 
 

a) Parking within the front yard shall be limited to customer and visitor 
parking only; all other parking should be provided elsewhere on site. 

 
b) Permeable or alternate paving surface treatments are encouraged for 

light duty parking areas (e.g. customer or visitor parking). Swales and bio-
filtering are encouraged to be incorporated into landscaping adjacent to 
parking areas in order to aid storm water infiltration.  

 
c) Landscape materials shall be drought tolerant and appropriate for the 

Okanagan climate. Rain water capture and re-use for irrigation is 
encouraged. 

 
d) Fencing (in addition to landscaping) shall be installed on all property 

boundaries adjacent to residential use. All installed fencing shall be 
opaque except for decorative fencing in a front yard. 

 
e) Where new industrial development is occurring adjacent to residential 

land uses, the interface shall be site planned, designed, and landscaped 
to promote privacy for the residential land use. 

 

16



And replace it with a new 15.6.9 Landscaping, buffering and parking that reads: 
 
“a)   No parking shall be permitted:  

 in the front yard except visitor and residential parking; 

 in required side yards; 

 in the rear yard within 7.5m of an adjacent non industrial future land use 
designation.” 

 
j) Deleing 15.6.10 Landscaping, buffering and parking in its entirety that reads: 

 
“15.6.10 Outdoor storage and display 

 
a) Outdoor storage ancillary to a permitted use is not permitted in the front 

yard, or within the minimum side and rear yard setbacks (but may be 
accommodated in the side and rear yards when located beyond the minimum 
setback). 
 

b) All outdoor storage shall be screened from view of any street or adjoining 
property utilizing opaque fencing and landscaping materials which are 
consistent with the overall site development. 
 

c) Outdoor storage shall be consolidated into a single area per lot. 
 

d) Outdoor storage ancillary to a permitted use shall not exceed in area the 
building area used by the business on the property to perform its operations. 
 

e) There shall be no outdoor storage of toxic, noxious, explosive, odorous or 
radioactive materials.  
 

f) Materials in outdoor storage shall be associated with the principal use located 
on the site, and there shall be no outdoor storage of unrelated materials.  
 

g) Illumination of outdoor storage areas shall be such that light falling onto 
abutting properties is minimized. 
  

h) Outdoor display or sales, or non-accessory parking, shall not encroach into 
landscaped areas. 
 

i) Equipment or vehicles in an outdoor display or sales, or non-accessory parking, 
shall not be in a state of disrepair.  
 

j) Lighting of outdoor display areas shall not include broadcast light fixtures but 
rather directional lighting specific to the display items.”   

 
And replace it with a new 15.6.10 Outdoor storage and display that reads: 
 

“15.6.10 Outdoor storage and display 
 

a) No outdoor storage is permitted in the front yard or in required side or rear 
yard setbacks. 

 
b) All outdoor storage shall be screened from view of any street or adjoining 

property utilizing opaque fencing and landscaping materials which are 
consistent with the overall site development. 

 
c) Outdoor storage shall be consolidated into a single area per lot. 

17



 
 
d) Outdoor display or sales, or non-accessory parking, shall not encroach into 

landscaped areas.” 
 

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this  13th day of April, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

18



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/23/2015 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL15-0002 Owner: 
Viewcrest Estates Ltd. 

Inc. No. 80372 

Address: 
293 – 297 Bernard Ave. 

(Unit 1500 Water St.) 
Applicant: 

Fresco Restaurant Ltd. 

(Audrey Surrao) 

Subject: Liquor License Application 

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential /Commercial)(MXR) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 
1.0 Recommendation 
THAT Council directs Staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 
 
In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, be it resolved THAT: 
 
Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from Fresco Restaurant Ltd. 293-297 Bernard Avenue (unit address 1500 Water 
St.), Kelowna BC, (legally described as Lot 10, Block 13, DL 139, O.D.Y.D., plan 462 and Lot 11, 
Block 13 District Lot 139, ODYD Plan 462 except Plan 9892) to add a patio with capacity of 11 
persons to an existing Liquor Primary license are as follows: 
 
 a) The impact of noise on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment: 
 The potential for noise would be compatible with surrounding land uses. 
 b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
 The proposed addition of a patio area to the existing license would add to the continued 
 development of a safe, vibrant Downtown area. 
 c) View of residents:  
 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 
 d) Recommendation: 
 Council recommends that the application for a change to a Liquor Primary license to add a 

19



LL15-0002 – Page 2 

 
 

 patio be approved 
 

1.0 Purpose  

To seek Council’s support for a proposed change to an existing Liquor Primary license.  

2.0 Urban Planning 

This application proposes to add a small patio to an existing small Liquor Primary establishment.  
It will allow the operator to provide more options to patrons during the summer season.  The 
addition of patio seating will also animate the street front to improve the pedestrian experience 
in the area.  As a requirement of the Terms of Reference for the City of Kelowna Sidewalk 
Seating program, there is a limit to the operating hours of a sidewalk patio which is 10:00pm 
Sunday to Thursday, and 12:00 Midnight for Friday and Saturdays. 
 
The Urban Planning Department is supportive of the proposed changes to the Liquor Primary 
establishment.  In addition, the RCMP have no concerns with the proposal. 

3.0 Proposal 

3.1 Background 

The subject property was developed as a Liquor Primary establishment (known as Micro Bar.Bites) 
with a an occupant load of 34 persons in 2013.   Council considered Liquor License application 
LL13-0003 on August 27, 2013. 

3.2 Project Description 

An application has been made to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch for structural changes 
to an existing Liquor Primary License. The applicant is seeking to add a sidewalk patio to the 
Water St. frontage with a seating capacity of 11 persons to the existing Liquor Primary License 
for Micro Bar.Bites.   

License Summary: 

Proposed Capacity: 
 

Licensed Area Capacity 

Liquor Primary Area 34 persons 

Patio Area (added to existing LP license) 11 persons 

Total Revised Person Capacity   45 persons 

 
Current License Summary: 

Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 

Close 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 

 
  

20



LL15-0002 – Page 3 

 
 

3.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the south west corner of the intersection of Bernard Avenue 
and Water Street. The unit address is 1500 Water Street, and faces Water Street.  The location of 
the Micro Bar. Bites is facing Water Street, located in the middle of the building façade. 

Subject Property Map:         293-297 Bernard Avenue 
 

 

4.0 Current Development Policies 

4.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Small establishments (with person capacity less than 100 persons): 
i) Should not be located beside an existing Small establishment. 

 

4.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1
 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 

facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 
Downtown.2

 The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

Kelly O’Bryan’s 

Doc Willoughby’s 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Liquid Zoo 

RauDZ 

Approximate location of patio 

21



LL15-0002 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

5.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

5.3 RCMP 

The RCMP has no concerns with the applicant extending their liquor licence to include 
service to an 11 seat patio. It is preferred that liquor service to the patio ends at 12:00 
am. 

 
 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: February 3, 2015 
Missing State of Title Received: March 18, 2015 
 

 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property map 
Applicant Rationale letter 
LCLB 
Occupant Load Plan 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/31/2015 

RIM No. 0930-50  

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL15-0004 Owner: 
Dutchcad B.I.L. Investments 
Ltd., Inc No BC0761560 

Address: 
267-271 Bernard Ave. 

(unit address 271 Bernard Ave.) 
Applicant: 

Rivals Sports Theatre and 
Grill Ltd. c/o Aegir 
Consulting Inc. 

Subject: Liquor License Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)(MXR) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council directs staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 
 
In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed 
considerations for the application at address:  271 Bernard Ave., Kelowna BC, (legally described 
as Amended Lot 14 (DD142773F), Block 13, District Lot 139, O.D.Y.D., Plan 462) for closing at 
1am and to include a patron participation entertainment endorsement, are as follows: 
 
a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 
 The potential impact for noise is minimal and would be compatible with surrounding land 
 uses.  
 
b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
 The potential for negative impacts is considered to be minimal. 
 
c) View of residents:  
 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 

32



LL15-0004 – Page 2 

 
 

 
d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 
 The total person capacity proposed for food primary service is 84 seats inside and a patio 
 of 15 patrons, with operating hours of 9:00am to 1:00am for Sunday to Saturday. 
 
e) Traffic and parking: 
 There is no increase in traffic or parking associated with this application as there is no 
 additional space or seating being added as part of the application. Therefore the parking 
 and traffic situation should remain unchanged.   
 
f) If the proposed endorsement would result in the establishment being operated in a 
 manner which is contrary to its primary purpose: 
 The endorsement is being sought to offer an additional level of service to the food 
 primary establishment.  The focus of the proposed facility will be as a food primary 
 establishment.  
 
g) Recommendation: 
 Council recommends that the application for Food Primary License to close after midnight 
 and the application for a patron participation entertainment Liquor License endorsement 
 be approved. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after midnight and for a 
Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement for a food primary establishment located on the 
subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

The proposed Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement would allow the venue to allow 
for dancing, in addition to live entertainment events that already occur at the restaurant.  This 
endorsement is not anticipated to have a negative impact on the surrounding area given the 
location.   
 
The proposed licensed hours of operation to remain open until 1:00am is also not perceived to 
have negative effects on the surrounding area given the location.  The operation of the patio 
area will have to comply with the City licensing agreement in place. 
 
In consideration of the above, the Urban Planning Department recommends support for the 
proposed license endorsement.  Discussion on the LCLB’s regulatory criteria for Local 
Government comment on liquor license endorsement applications is as contained within Staff’s 
recommendation at the beginning of this report. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, all new Food Primary licenses closing after 
midnight require Local Government comment.  Local Government comment is also required for a 
Parton Participation Entertainment endorsement. 

  

33



LL15-0004 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant has operated a Food Primary establishment on the subject property known as 
“Rivals Sports Theatre and Grill” since 2014. This establishment has been licensed as a Food 
Primary Establishment, without a patron participation entertainment endorsement and closing at 
midnight.  The application for a permanent change to a liquor license proposes to operate 
beyond midnight to close at 1:00am, as well as proposes to add a Patron Participation 
Entertainment endorsement to their Food Primary license to allow for dancing.  Both of these 
occurrences require a Council Resolution to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB). 

The Food Primary establishment is designed with an occupancy load of 84 persons for the interior 
locations and a maximum occupant load of 15 persons for the exterior patio area adjacent to the 
Bernard Avenue street frontage. 

The floor space is to continue to be operated as a food primary establishment. 
 
Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 

Close 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 

 

Licensed Areas Capacity 

Food Primary capacity 84 

Patio capacity  15 

4.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map:       271 Bernard Avenue 
 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Proposed Westcorp Hotel O’Flannigan Pub 

Cheethas Liquid Zoo 

Kelly O’Bryan’s 

34



LL15-0004 – Page 4 

 
 

The subject property is located on the south side of Bernard Avenue, between Abbott Street and 
Water Street.  The location is part of the recently completed Bernard Avenue Revitalization 
project. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business Commercial Professional offices/retail 

East C7 – Central Business Commercial Professional offices/retail 

South C7 – Central Business Commercial Professional offices/retail 

West C7 – Central Business Commercial Professional offices/retail 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application; 

Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments which are 
less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, and Food Primary 
establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment Endorsement) to add a mix of 
entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting potential community impacts via 
license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc) 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 

Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.3 R.C.M.P. 

The RCMP is not opposed to the applicant's request for a Food-primary Liquor Licence with 
entertainment endorsement. With this licence the RCMP will not support hours of service 
beyond 1:00 a.m.    
 

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

35



LL15-0004 – Page 5 

 
 

6.4 Real Estate & Building Service 

Please confirm that there is no impact on patio requirements. 
(There is no change to the operation of the patio proposed.) 

 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: March 3, 2015 
 
 
 
 

Report prepared by: 

 
 
 
     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Certified Occupancy Load Plan 
Applicant Rationale letter 
Copy LCLB application 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/31/2015 

RIM No. 0930-50  

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL14-0017 Owner: AD Sopa Holdings Inc. 

Address: 2986 – 3030 Pandosy St. Applicant: 
ANR Construction for The 
Canadian Brewhouse 

Subject: Liquor License Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)(MXR) 

Existing Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council directs staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 
 
In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed 
considerations for the application at address:  3030 Pandosy St., Kelowna BC, (legally described 
as Lot A, District Lot 14 and Section 13, Township 25, ODYD, Plan KAP90796, excpet Air Space 
Plan EPP17953) for closing at 1am and to include a patron participation entertainment 
endorsement, are as follows: 
 
a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 
 The potential impact for noise is minimal and would be compatible with surrounding land 
 uses.  
 
b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
 The potential for negative impacts is considered to be minimal. 
 
c) View of residents:  
 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 
 

48



LL14-0017 – Page 2 

 
 

d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 
 The total person capacity proposed for food primary service is 243 seats inside and a patio 
 of 33 patrons, with operating hours of 11:00am to 1:00am for Sunday to Saturday. 
 
e) Traffic and parking: 
 There is no increase in traffic or parking associated with this application as there is no 
 additional space or seating being added as part of the application. Therefore the parking 
 and traffic situation should remain unchanged.   
 
f) If the proposed endorsement would result in the establishment being operated in a 
 manner which is contrary to its primary purpose: 
 The endorsement is being sought to offer an additional level of service to the food 
 primary establishment.  The focus of the proposed facility will be as a food primary 
 establishment.  
 
g) Recommendation: 
 Council recommends that the application for Food Primary License to close after midnight 
 and the application for a patron participation entertainment Liquor License endorsement 
 be approved. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after midnight and for a 
Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement for a new food primary establishment to be 
located on the subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

The proposed Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement would allow the venue to hold 
special events, such as “wine and dine”, or “New Year’s Eve” where patrons would typically 
participate in some form of entertainment.  This endorsement is not anticipated to have a 
negative impact on the surrounding area given the location.   
 
The proposed licensed hours of operation to remain open until 1:00am is also not perceived to 
have negative effects on the surrounding area given the location. 
 
In consideration of the above, the Urban Planning Department recommends support for the 
proposed license endorsement.  Discussion on the LCLB’s regulatory criteria for Local 
Government comment on liquor license endorsement applications is as contained within Staff’s 
recommendation at the beginning of this report. 

The applicant has canvassed the neighbourhood and had provided input that had been obtained 
during that process. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, all new Food Primary licenses closing after 
midnight require Local Government comment.  Local Government comment is also required for a 
Parton Participation Entertainment endorsement. 

49



LL14-0017 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to develop a Food Primary establishment within the southern two bays 
of the Sopa Square building, currently under construction.  The Liquor License application 
indicates that they are proposing to operate beyond midnight to close at 1:00am, as well as 
proposing to add a Patron Participation Entertainment endorsement to their Food Primary license 
to allow for special events.  Both of these occurrences require a Council Resolution to the Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB). 

Associated with this application, the applicant is also seeking a Lounge Endorsement for the Food 
Primary liquor license in order for LCLB to approve the operating name that the applicant has 
proposed for the establishment. 

The Food Primary establishment is designed with an occupancy load of 243 persons for the 
interior locations, and a maximum occupant load of 33 persons for the exterior patio area 
adjacent to the Pandosy Street frontage. 

The interior portion of the establishment is also designed to incorporate a designated lounge area 
with a capacity of 40 patrons, that is included within the 243 person occupant load for the 
establishment. 
 
The floor space is to be operated as a food primary establishment. 
 
Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 

Close 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 

 

Licensed Areas Capacity 

Food Primary capacity 243 

Patio capacity  33 

The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject site is a portion of the ground floor space of the Sopa Square building.  The subject 
location is the southernmost bays of the building, and a portion of the outdoor and sidewalk area 
in front of the space. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C4 – Urban Centre  Commercial Professional offices/retail 

East C4 – Urban Centre  Commercial Retail / restaurants 

South C4 – Urban Centre  Commercial Financial Services 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Temporary Staging area for Sopa Square 

 

  

50



LL14-0017 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map:      2986 – 3030 Pandosy Street 
 

 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application; 

Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments which are 
less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, and Food Primary 
establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment Endorsement) to add a mix of 
entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting potential community impacts via 
license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc) 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 

Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 
  

                                                
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Royal Bank building Lakeview Market 

Approximate location of proposed  
food primary establishment 

51



LL14-0017 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1 Changes to the interior will require Architectural, Structural and Mechanical 
Consultants due to the changes required in the interior of the building. Building, 
Plumbing and Heating Permits are required to be issued prior to any work 
occurring. 

2 Exiting travel distances are to be established on the Architectural code analysis 

3 Washroom requirement to be established (i.e. H/C universal room, occupant loads) 

4 Confirmation of the roof membrane is still adequate from the Architect 

5 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

6.2 Fire Department 

The Fire Department has no concerns with the liquor license. We will be required to make 
comments on the BP stage. 

6.3 R.C.M.P. 

The RCMP have no concerns with these applications proceeding.  

6.4 Real Estate & Building Service 

Need to confirm location of patio to determine if it is locate on City property 
(Application has been submitted  

 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: December 8, 2014 
 
Occupant Load Received;  January 20, 2015  
 
New Title    March 30, 2015 

Report prepared by: 

 
 
 
     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
  

52



LL14-0017 – Page 6 

 
 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Certified Occupancy Load Plan 
Applicant Rationale letter 
Copy LCLB application 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 17, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DVP15-0014 Owner: Cheryl Rogers 

Address: 1290 Bothe Road Applicant: 

Mike Budd 

MS Budd Construction 
MBL12890 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Rural Residential 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0014, for Lot G 
District Lot 131 ODYD Plan 38135, located on 1290 Bothe Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

  Section 13.1.6(d) RU1 – Large Lot Housing Zone Development Regulations 

To vary the side yard from 2.3m required to 2.13m existing; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a side yard setback variance for an addition. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed development application. The existing single detached 
house was constructed in 1988. The proposal is to convert the single, front attached garage into a 
secondary suite. The proposal includes the addition of a second storey area for the suite. The 
required variance would allow the second storey side setback to be reduced from 2.3m required 
to the provided setback of 2.13m on the east side of the house.  

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by contacting the neighbours in person. 

67



DVP15-0014 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The existing single detached dwelling meets the setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. The 
second storey addition will have the same setback as the existing main floor level and therefore 
requires the variance to reduce the setback from 2.3m proposed to 2.1m existing. 

A small addition is proposed on the west side of the house to add a single car garage. The 
proposed setback from the house to the west side property line meets the Zoning Bylaw 
requirement of 2.0m. The addition is 3.05m (10 feet) wide and matches the existing building 
depth. The roofline of the addition will match the existing house. 

The parcel provides parking to meet the Bylaw requirements for both the existing dwelling and 
the secondary suite. Parking for the house is provided with one stall in the new garage addition 
and the second stall on the driveway entry to the garage. The parking space for the secondary 
suite utilizes the current driveway access and is adjacent to the suite. A lit pathway provides 
access from the parking stall to the entry of the suite. Private open space is directly accessed 
from the secondary suite entry. 

The exterior cladding is being upgraded with hardiplank siding for the entire home. Cultured 
stone accents are used on the facades visible from the street. Shingles on the existing house are 
being replaced to make the shingles on the addition.These changes modernize the aging facade 
and blends the additions seamlessly. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Bothe Road in the South Pandosy - KLO area 
of Kelowna. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P2 – Education & Minor Institutional Religious Assemblies 

East RU2 –Medium Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

 
  

68



DVP15-0014 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1290 Bothe Road 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 550m2 3,062m2   

Min. Lot Width 16.5m 27m  

Min. Lot Depth 30m 135.28m 

Development Regulations 
Max. Site Coverage 40% 11.1% 

Max. Site coverage 
(with driveways & parking areas)  

50% 3.7% 

Max. Height 9.5m ot 2 ½ storeys 5.1m 

Min. Front Yard (to dwelling) 4.5m  7.12m 

Min. Front Yard (to garage) 6.0m  11.44m 

Min. Side Yard (east) 2.3m 2.1m  

Min. Side Yard (west) 2.0m 2.0m 

Min. Rear Yard 7.5m 10.65m existing 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements 3 stalls 3 stalls 

Min. Private Open Space 30m2 min. 30m2 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary the east side yard from 2.3m required to 2.1m provided. 

 

  

69



DVP15-0014 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

2) Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12). 

3) Provide the City of Kelowna Bulletin #88-02 (Secondary Suites Requirements in a single 
family dwelling) for minimum requirements. The drawings submitted for Building Permit 
application is to indicate the method of fire separation between the suite and the main 
dwelling.  

4) Range hood above the stove and the washroom to vent separately to the exterior of the 
building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire separation is restricted by 
BCBC 12, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details at time of Building Permit 
Applications. 

5) A fire rating of the new second floor will require an upgrade of the fire separations within 
the existing dwelling space. Please provide these details on the building permit drawing 
sets. 

6) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

7)   Windows in the upper floor area are within the fire separation wall required and need to 
be protected with one of the following methods: 

a) fire shutters,  

b) sprinkler heads,  

c) or removed from the wall.  

This will affect the form and character of this dwelling. 

 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

70



DVP15-0014 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum dated February 13, 2015. 

6.3 Fortis BC Inc - Electric 

There are primary distribution facilities along Bothe Rd.  The applicant is responsible for costs 
associated with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as well as the 
provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no concerns with this circulation. 

In order to initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-4FORTIS (1-866-436-7847).  
It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be 
dealt with at that time, prior to construction.Fire Department 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  January 12, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 3, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 
Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit DVP15-0014 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 13, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DVP15-0046 Owner: Wendy Marcolli 

Address: 845 Bernard Avenue Applicant: Wendy Marcolli 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0046, for 845 
Bernard Avenue, located on Lot 26 Block 15 District Lot 138 ODYD Plan 262, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

  Section 13.6.6 (b): RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Development Guidelines 

  To vary the maximum height of an accessory building from 4.5m to 4.8m; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a variance to the height of an accessory building. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning Staff support the requested variance to the overall height of the accessory 
building. The property owner would like to construct an accessory building with the future 
intention of converting the building to a Carriage House. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The property is currently zoned RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing. The Zoning Bylaw maximum height 
of an accessory building is 4.5m. The maximum height for a Carriage House is 4.8m. Building 
height is measured to the mid-point of the roof structure. This additional height will easily allow 
the attic storage space to be converted to a dwelling unit at a future date. Currently, the owner 

82



DVP15-0046 – Page 2 

 
 

does not have funds to complete the construction of the dwelling unit. The space will be used as 
storage.  

The conversion of an accessory building to a Carriage House has, in the past, been a problematic 
process for Building & Permitting. In order to ensure a smoother process, provisions for the future 
conversion to a Carriage House have been considered. The proposal has been reviewed to ensure 
it meets current Zoning Bylaw requirements for Carriage House development. To aid the Building 
Permit process, the steps being taken now include radon venting of the concrete slab, fire 
separation around the stairwell, and two piece rough-in plumbing within the storage space as 
allowed in the Zoning Bylaw for Accessory Development.  

The accessory building is accessed from the rear lane with the lower level providing two parking 
spaces for the dwelling. The building is located 1.5m from the rear property line and is centred 
across the width of the parcel with 3.35m to each on the side property lines. This will 
accomodate the future additional parking space requirement for a Carriage House. The accessory 
building as proposed meets all other current zoning requirements for both an accessory building 
and a Carriage House. 

The subject property is located on the south side of Bernard Avenue. The parcel is designated 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent 
Growth Boundary. The parcel is located within the Character Neighbourhood Development Permit 
Area and a form and character development permit will be required for the building when 
converted to a Carriage House. Even though form and character is not reviewed for the current 
application, the proposal is accounting for the future requirements of a Carriage House.The 
accessory building as proposed fits within the site context. There are numberous existing carriage 
houses accessed from the same rear lane. 

The area surrounding the property is a mix of residential uses, and includes single family 
dwellings, carriage houses and an apartment building. Knowles Heritage Park is located east of 
the subject parcel. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by contacting them in person and providing proposal application 
packages. 

4.2 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

 

  

83



DVP15-0046 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 845 Bernard Avenue 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 400 m2 min. 636.40 m2 

Min. Lot Width 13.0 m min. 15.24 m 

Min. Lot Depth 30.0 m min. 41.76 m 

Development Regulations 
Max. Site Coverage (buildings) 40% max. 29.98% 

Max. Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways & parking) 

50% max. 29.98% 

Development Regulations (Accessory Building) 
Min. Side Yard (east) 1.2 m min. 3.35 m 

Min. Side Yard (west) 1.2 m min. 3.35 m 

Min. Rear Yard 1.5 m min. 1.5 m 

Min. Separation from Dwelling 1.0 m min. 7.70m  

Max. Accessory Site Coverage  14% max 9.81% 

Max. Accessory Building 
Footprint  

90 m2 max. 62.4 m2 

Max. Accessory Building Height 4.5m max. 4.8m proposed  

 Indicates a proposed variance to the accesscory building maximum height 

 

  

84



DVP15-0046 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Current Development Policies  

4.5 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

See the attached memorandum dated March 3, 2015. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 2, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 3, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Project Rendering 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan  
Conceptual Elevations  
Floor Plan  
Summary of Technical Comments 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0046 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 11, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DVP15-0037 Owner: Andrew & Joan Marceau 

Address: 1480 Guisachan Place Applicant: Kevin Lashinski 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential  

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0037, for Lot 4 
District Lot 136 ODYD Plan 9353, Located at 1480 Guisachan Place, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.6(e): RU1 – Large Lot Housing - Development Regulations 

Vary the minimum required rear yard setback from 7.5 m required to 6.0 m proposed.  

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval with no opportunity to extend.  

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the rear yard setback. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed variance on the subject property. The proposed variance is 
required to allow the addition of a carport to an existing attached garage on a single family 
dwelling. This addition will fit with the form and character of the existing ranch style dwelling. 
The roof of the proposed carport will follow the same pitch as the existing attached garage and 
be 30 cm lower than the height of the existing garage. The proposed location of the carport 
allows for 6.0 m of open space to the rear property line as well as 7.5 m clearance down the 
driveway to Guisachan Place. This distance permits a vehicle to turn around on the property 
allowing forward access and egress to and from Guisachan Place. 

  

4.0 Proposal 

94



DVP15-0037 – Page 2 

 
 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property contains a one 
storey single family dwelling with an 
attached garage. The proposed 
carport would be constructed on the 
west side of an existing garage. The 
carport measures 4.9 m wide and 9.1 
m long. The mid-point of the roof 
measures 3.7 m in height which is 30 
cm lower than the existing garage 
height. The driveway on the subject 
property is currently wider than the 
maximum allowable width of 6.0 m as 
per Schedule 4 of Bylaw 7900 City of 
Kelowna Design Standards; Section 4.6 

Curb & Gutter, Sidewalks & Bike Lanes. The existing driveway may remain the current width of 
8.0 m. Widening of the driveway along Guisachan Place to access the proposed carport parking 
spot is not permitted.   

 

 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the northwest corner of the intersection at Guisachan Place 
and Burtch Road. The neighbouring properties to the north and west are also zoned RU1. A 
development to the south of the subject property is zoned RU5. Agriculture land zoned A1 – 
Agriculture 1 exists to the east of Burtch Road. The subject property is identified in Kelowna’s 
OCP as Single /Two Unit Residential (S2RES), and is within the permanent growth boundary.  

  

                                    Proposed North Elevation 

Area of Proposed Carport 

1480  

Plan View 

GUISACHAN PL  

B
U

R
T
C
H

 R
D

  

95



DVP15-0037 – Page 3 

 
 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 Single Family House 

East A1 Pasture 

South RU5 Bareland Strata Housing 

West RU1 Single Family House 
 

Subject Property Map: 1480 Guisachan Place 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 550 m2 871 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 17 m 20.4 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30 m 42.67 m 
Development Regulations 

Maximum Site Coverage 40% 30% 

Maximum Site Coverage including 
driveways & parking areas 

50% 37% 

Maximum Height 4.0 m (existing garage) 3.8 m 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m 9.1 m 

Minimum Side Yard (north) 2.0 m 2.15 m 

Minimum Side Yard (south) 2.0 m 7.6 m 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m  6.0 m  

  Requested Rear Yard Setback to a principle dwelling 

96



DVP15-0037 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum dated February 24, 2015 

 

Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  February 17, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: September 28, 2014 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” Site Plan 
Schedule “B” Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

97



98



99



100



101



102



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP15-0037 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

Vary the minimum rear yard setback from 7.5 m required to 6.0 m 
proposed.   

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Andrew & Joan Marceau 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:   1480 Guisachan Place 
 

 

 LOT D.L. DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

4 136 ODYD 9353 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw 
unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be 
granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been 
identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
a) THAT the dimensions and siting of the carport are to be constructed on the land in general accordance with 

Schedule “A”; 
 

b) AND THAT the design and finish of the carport are to be constructed on the land in general accordance with 
Schedule “B”; 
 

c) AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 13.1.6(e): RU1 – Large Lot Housing – Development Regulations 
Vary the minimum required rear yard setback from 7.5 m required to 6.0 m proposed.   
 

d) AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of Council 
approval, with no opportunity to extend; 
 

3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 

103



- 2 - 
  DVP15-0037 
 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
 

4. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of N/A 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of N/A      
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 

 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Manager of Urban 
Planning. 

 

104



- 3 - 
  DVP15-0037 
 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE  ___________DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ____________ DAY OF 

__________________, 2015 BY THE MANAGER OF URBAN PLANNING. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Ryan Smith,  

Urban Planning Manager  

105



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/13/2015 

RIM No. 0940-00  

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (AC) 

Application: DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 Owner: 
Nor-Can Ventures Ltd., Inc. 
No. 594390 

Address: 1502 &1506 Sutherland Ave Applicant: Dennis MacLeod 

Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Application 

Existing OCP 
Designation: 

MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) & PARK – Major park / Open 
Space 

Existing Zone: C3 – Community Commercial 

 
1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0033 for Lot A & B, 
District Lot 141, ODYD, Plan 19444, located on 1502 & 1506 Sutherland Avenue, Kelowna, BC 
subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. That an access easement be registered on Lot A & B to ensure adequate vehicle stacking 
for the car wash be maintained. 

5. That a blanket Statutory Right-of-Way for maintenance access to the riparian area be 
registered on Lot A & B. 

6. That the land swap agreement between the applicant and the City of Kelowna be 
completed. 

7. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied as described in the attached report dated March 5th 2015”;  

8. That the applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 

106



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0034 for 
Lot A, District Lot 141, ODYD, Plan 19444, located on 1502 & 1506 Sutherland Avenue, Kelowna, 
BC. 

AND THAT the variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 14.3.5 (d) Development Regulations 

Vary the front yard setback requirement from 3.0 metre required setback to 1.5 metre proposed; 
AND 

Section 14.3.5 (e) Development Regulations 

Vary the west flanking side yard setback requirement from 2.0 metre required setback to 1.5 
metre proposed. 

AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions of Council’s 
approval of the Development Permit / Development Variance Permit Applications in order for the 
permit to be issued. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit / Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) 
years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for a phased mixed use 
commercial and residential building as well as an expanded car wash. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff are supportive of the proposed Development Permit and Development Variance Permit. A 
Development Permit is necessary in this case as the subject property is located within a 
designated revitalization area. Kelowna’s revitalization areas represent the city’s core 
commercial centres with associated, supporting mixed use and residential development. The 
intent of the Revitalization Development Permit areas is to enhance and catalyze these areas as 
they continue to experience rapid growth, pressures to intensify, and increasing design 
expectations. The purpose of the Revitalization Design Guidelines is to ensure that the siting, 
form, landscaping, exterior design and finish of buildings, and character of the development is of 
high quality and compatible with the vision for these urban centres.  

The intersection at Sutherland Ave and Burtch Rd is a significant underdeveloped corner lot that 
will inform any future development in the area. The proposed building is placed close to the 
property lines and the intersection to enhance the pedestrian experience and to provide for a 
more visually appealing urban setting. The development of this corner lot will add another traffic 
lane along Burtch Rd which has been a priority improvement from a transportation perspective. 
The integrated parking within the building and the proposed car elevator exceeds the 
Development Permit guidelines and avoids surface parking surrounding the building which is 
common in similar forms of development. The development meets the zoning bylaw requirement 
of one loading space. Staff further recommend that the loading space be clearly marked on the 
pavement and that the necessary signage is provided. The lane between the two buildings will be 
blocked whenever the loading space is being utilized. 

The Development Variance Permit is proposed to permit a flanking side yard (along Burtch Rd) 
setback reduction from 2.0 metres to 1.5 metres and a front yard (along Sutherland Ave) setback 
reduction from 3.0 metres to 1.5 metres. These setback requirements were negotiated with Staff 

107



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 3 

 
 

to enhance the pedestrian experience and protect the multi-modal corridor located along 
Sutherland Avenue. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during the initial consultation with neighbouring 
parcels 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject properties are broken into two legal sites. Site 1 is located on the corner of Burtch 
Road and Sutherland Avenue. This site is proposed to consist of a new phased commercial 
development. Phase 1 will begin with the renovated car wash on site 2. This development 
consists of face lifts to the existing carwash building and access changes which will permit an 
entrance from Burtch Road and an exit onto Sutherland Avenue. The building enhancement will 
include similar materials to the proposed commercial building, including similar colour schemes. 
This will provide visual unity for the overall development.   

Phase 2 will consist of a commercial building that includes: 12 parking stalls, 114 m2 of office 
space, and a proposed 120 m2 laundromat. Phase 3 converts the first floor office space to a 
sandwich/coffee restaurant style space and adds: 19 new parking spaces on second floor, a car 
elevator, 478 m2 office space on third floor, and 7 residential units on the fourth floor. The site 
entrance and proposed parkade entrance for the commercial building is located on Sutherland 
Avenue. 

The commercial building will be constructed with a combination of steel frames and wood 
construction with an acrylic stucco exterior. The entrances to the tenant spaces in the building 
will be from the south. The parking is contained within the building itself. The south face of the 
building (Sutherland Ave) will be articulated with doors and windows in the form of storefront 
glazing, canopies, and decorative corporate signage. 

 

Proposed 
Loading 
Space 
Location 

108



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 4 

 
 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located in the ‘Capri-Landmark’ Urban Centre. The developable 
portions of the subject properties have a Future Land Use designation of MXR - Mixed Use 
(Residential / Commercial) in the Official Community Plan and are within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C3 – Community Commercial Commercial 

East C3 – Community Commercial Commercial 

South 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
C3 – Community Commercial 
Land Use Contract 

Residential 
Commercial 
Commercial 

West P2 – Education and Minot Institutional Church – Salvation Army 

  

4.3 Subject Properties Map: 1502 -1506 Sutherland Avenue 

 

 

 

 

 

Site 1 

Site 2 

109



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 5 

 
 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 

C3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Site 1 Site 2 Site 1 Site 2 

Phase 1 Phase 2 

Development Regulations 

Height 15 m / 4 storeys 1 storey 
15 m / 4 
storeys 

1 storey 

Front Yard (north) 3.0 m 1.5 m  5.13 m 

Side Yard (west) 2.0 m 0.0 m 1.5 m  3.13 m 

Side Yard (east) 0.0 m 2.31 m 4.32 m 

Rear Yard (south) 0.0 m 33.4 m 27.25 m 

Site coverage of 
buildings  

50 % 43 % 16 % 

Commercial FAR 1.0 0.13 0.72 0.16 

Max Gross Floor 
Area for Financial 

Services 
500 m2 114 m2 478 m2 n/a 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking 
Requirements 

(Phase 1 / 2) 
9 spaces / 21 

spaces 

1 stall per 2 
employees 
(1 req’d) 

12 spaces 22 spaces 1 stall 

Minimum Car 
Wash Stacking 

n/a 

5 spaces per 
automatic & 
2 spaces per 

manual 

n/a n/a 9 car stacking   

Minimum Bicycle 
Parking 

(Phase 1 / 2) 
Class 1: 0 / 4 
Class 2: 0 / 2 

Class 1: 4 
Class 2: 2 

Class 1: 0 
Class 2: 4 

Class 1: 6 
Class 2: 4 

Class 1: 0 
Class 2: 0 

Car Wash Vehicle 
Stacking 

n/a 

5 per 
automatic  

2 per 
manual  
(9 total 
req’d) 

n/a n/a 9 spaces 

Private Open 
Space 

(Phase 1 / 2) 
0 m2 / 70 m2 

n/a n/a 70 m2 n/a 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce  the front yard setback requirement for site 1. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce  the flanking side yard setback requirement for site 1. 
 The stacking occurs over both sites and will requirement an access easement registered on title.  

 

 

 

6.0 Current Development Policies 

110



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 6 

 
 

6.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Relevant Revitalization Development Permit Guidelines 

S.4.12. Incorporate a high level of transparency (non-reflective and non-tinted glazing) on a 
minimum of 75% of the first floor elevation for commercial mixed use, and industrial 
developments; 

S.6.1. Conceal at-grade and above-grade parking levels with façade treatments; 

S.6.5. Uses associated with motor vehicles, including truck loading and waste storage and 
removal, should be screened from public view and should not be situated where they would 
conflict with pedestrian movement patterns; 
 
S.6.8. Distinguish driving, parking, pedestrian, and cycling areas through changes in colour / 
pattern / materials of the paving. 

7.0 Technical Comments   

Building & Permitting 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

 Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be 
on site. The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit 
application.  

 A Hoarding permit is required and protection of the public from the staging area 
and the new building area during construction. Location of the staging area and 
location of any cranes should be established at time of DP. 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the 
building(s): 

o Door swings and gate swings for proper means of exiting are required 
o Additional doors and corridors may be required to meet minimum exiting 

requirements. This may include moving of the internal rated exit stairwells 
to meet minimum distances and addition of rated corridors. 

o Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in 
the code analysis by the architect. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

111



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 7 

 
 

o Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and 
should be reflected in the plans if required.  

 A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site 
drainage at time of building permit application. This property falls within the Mill 
Creek flood plain bylaw area and compliance is required. Minimum building 
elevations are required to be established prior to the release of the Development 
Permit. This minimum Geodetic elevation is required for all habitable spaces 
including parking garages. This building may be designed to low, which may affect 
the form and character of the building.  

 We strongly recommend that the developer have his professional consultants 
review and prepare solutions for potential impact of this development on adjacent 
properties. Any damage to adjacent properties is a civil action which does not 
involve the city directly. The items of potential damage claims by adjacent 
properties are items like settlement of foundations (preload), damage to the 
structure during construction, additional snow drift on neighbour roofs, excessive 
noise from mechanical units, vibration damage during foundation preparation work 
etc. 

 Guards are required for all decks and parking areas. The drawings provided don’t 
clearly identify compliance to these minimum requirements, but will be reviewed 
at time of building permit application. The appearance of these guards may affect 
the form and character of the building. 

 Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure 
room(s). The drawings submitted for building permit is to clearly identify how this 
rating will be achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

 An exit analysis is required as part of the code analysis at time of building permit 
application. The exit analysis is to address travel distances within the units, 
number of required exits per area, door swing direction, handrails on each side of 
exit stairs, width of exits etc. 

 Washroom requirements for base building are to be addressed in the building 
permit application. This will be addressed at time of building permit application. 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 
permit. This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be 
defined on the drawings per the bylaws on the permit application drawings. 

 Mechanical Ventilation inlet and exhausts vents are not clearly defined in these 
drawings for the enclosed parking storeys. The location and noise from these units 
should be addressed at time of Development Permit.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and 
NAFS are being applied to this structure at time of permit application. 

 
Development Engineering 

 See attached memorandum dated March 5th 2015. 

8.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 16th 2015      
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation Received (re: variance): March 18th 2015  

 

112



DP15-0033 & DVP15-0034 – Page 8 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memo 
Applicant Rationale 
Neighbourhood Consultation 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

 Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

 Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 
o Colour Board 

 Schedule ‘C’ 
o Landscape Plan 

 

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/1/2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: DVP15-0039 Owner: David & Janet Garland 

Address: 2422 Richter St. Applicant: 
Urban Options Planning and 
Permits 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0039, for Lot 7, 
DL 14, O.D.Y.D., Plan 1141, located on 2422 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC;  
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 13.6.6 (e): Development Regulations: 
 
To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 2.9m proposed. 

 
AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity for extension. 

2.0 Purpose 

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the rear yard setback. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning supports the required variance.  The owners are proposing an addition for a 
secondary suite to provide housing for an aging family member.  The size of the lot and the 
location of the existing dwelling preclude the construction of a carriage house.  An addition to 
the existing dwelling to add a secondary suite is an appropriate solution to provide additional 
accommodation on the property. 

The applicant has provided a record of the neighbourhood consultation.  Of the people 
contacted, there was no concern expressed.   This meets the requirements of Council Policy 367. 

150



DVP15-0029– Page 2 

 
 

Urban Planning has received a Staff level Development Permit application to address the form 
and character of the proposed development which will be processed should the variances be 
approved. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The original dwelling on the subject property was built in 1946.  There were several additions 
made in 1953 and 1973. 

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed addition to the rear of the existing dwelling is designed as a two bay garage on the 
ground level with a one bedroom suite above. 

The garage is accessed from the adjacent lane at the rear of the lot.  The suite is accessed by a 
covered stairway located along the north side of the addition. 

The applicant has requested a variance to relax the rear yard setback to 2.9m, measured to the 
stairway access to the suite.  This allows the proposed two storey addition to be connected to 
the rear of the existing dwelling.  The location of the new garage with access from the lane will 
replace the existing garage, and remove the current access from Richter Street. 

As part of the building program, the suite addition is designed to be finished with “Hale Navy” 
dark blue horizontal siding, with “Windham Cream” off-white trim element to the gable and 
windows.  The gable areas are designed to be finished with “Huntington Beige” shingle finishes. 

The existing dwelling is also proposed to be refinished with matching design elements and new 
paint as part of the construction program for the new suite.  The existing driveway access to 
Richter Street is to be decommissioned.  However, the existing gate is to remain to provide for 
emergency access to the property. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located within the South Pandosy – KLO sector of the City.  The property 
is located on the west side of Richter Street, mid-block between Birch Avenue and Francis 
Avenue.  The dwellings located on either side of the subject property are generally of a similar 
age and condition to the dwelling located on the subject property. 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single unit dwelling 

East 
RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Three unit dwelling 
2 - Single unit dwellings 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single unit dwelling & suite 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Lane 

 

  

151



DVP15-0029– Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map:        2422 Richter St. 
 

 
 

4.4 Zone Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 400m2 658m2 

Min. Lot Width 13m 17.98m 

Min. Lot Depth 30m 36.58m 

Max. Site Coverage of Buildings 40% 30% 

Max. Site Coverage of Buildings, 
Driveways, and parking 

50% 36.5% 

Principal Dwelling Development Regulations 
Floor Area – dwelling - 196m² (after addition) 

Floor Area -suite 
The lesser of 40% of principal 

building or 90m² 
60.2m² 
30.7% 

Max. Height 9.5m / 2 ½ Storeys 6.7m /2 storeys 

Min. Front Yard 
4.5m 

6.0m to garage or carport 
7.2m 

Min. Side Yard (south) 
2.0m for 1 or 1½ storey 
2.3m for 2 or 2½ storey 

1½ storey - 2.5m 

Min. Side Yard (north) 
2.0m for 1 or 1½ storey 
2.3m for 2 or 2½ storey 

2 storey – 2.3m 

Min. Rear Yard 
6.0m for 1 or 1½ storey 
7.5m for21 or 2½ storey 

2.9m  

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 stalls required 2 stalls provided 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Birch Avenue 

Francis Avenue 

Cameron Park 

152



DVP15-0029– Page 4 

 
 

Min. Private Open Space 30m² per dwelling Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 2.9m proposed 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Sensitive Infill.1 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
  Building Permits. 

2) Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British 
Columbia Building Code (BCBC 12). 

3) Provide the City of Kelowna Bulletin #88-02 (Secondary Suites Requirements in a 
single family dwelling) for minimum requirements. The drawings submitted for 
Building Permit application is to indicate the method of fire separation between 
the suite and the main dwelling.  

4) Range hood above the stove and the washroom to vent separately to the exterior 
of the building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire separation is 
restricted by BCBC 12, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details at time 
of Building Permit Applications. 

5) A fire rated exit stairwell is required from the suite to the exterior c/w fire rated 
 doors that open into the stairwell and a fire rating on the bottom of the stairs.  
 Please provide these details on the building permit drawing sets. 

6) The Building Code only allows for a secondary suite to be 40% of the main 
 residence to a maximum of 90 sq. meters. 

7) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
 Permit applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Development Engineering has the following comments and requirements associated with 
this application. The utility upgrading requirements outlined in this report will be a 
requirement of this development. 

   
1. Domestic Water and Fire Protection 

The existing lot is serviced with a small diameter (13-mm) copper water service, 
which is substandard. Adequate metered water service should be provided to meet 
current by-law requirements. The disconnection of the existing small diameter 
water service and the tie-in of a larger new service can be provided by City 
forces at the developer’s expense. The applicant will be required to sign a 
Third Party Work Order for the cost of the water service upgrades. For estimate 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

153



DVP15-0029– Page 5 

 
 

inquiry’s please contact Sergio Sartori, by email ssartori@kelowna.ca or phone, 
250-469-8589. 
       

2. Sanitary Sewer 
Our records indicate that this property is currently serviced with a 100mm-
diameter sanitary sewer service. An inspection chamber (IC) complete with brooks 
box must be installed on the service at the owner’s cost. Service upgrades can be 
provided by the City at the applicant’s cost. The applicant will be required to 
sign a Third Party Work Order for the cost of the service upgrade. For estimate 
inquiry’s please contact Sergio Sartori, by email ssartori@kelowna.ca or phone, 
250-469-8589. 
 

3. Development Permit and Site Related Issues 
Direct the roof drains into on-site rock pits. 
Access to this site is permitted from the lane only.  

 
4. Electric Power and Telecommunication Services 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to make a servicing application with the 
respective electric power, telephone and cable transmission companies to arrange 
for service upgrades to these services which would be at the applicant’s cost. 

 
Development Engineering comments and requirements regarding this development 
variance permit application are as follows: 

 
This development variance permit application to vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m to 
2.9m does not compromise any municipal services.  

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 FortisBC - Gas 

No concerns. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: February 17, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
  

154

mailto:ssartori@kelowna.ca
mailto:ssartori@kelowna.ca


DVP15-0029– Page 6 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11051 
Z14-0050 – Dickson Avenue Holdings Ltd. Inc. No. BC0778937  
1539-1541 Bedford Avenue, 1507-1511 Dickson Avenue and 

1517-1521 Dickson Avenue 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lots 2-4, District Lot 141, ODYD, Plan 13608, located on Bedford and 
Dickson Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM5 
– Medium Density Multiple Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 19th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 17th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 17th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this 23rd day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Blaine Garrison            
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

162



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/24/2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: 
Z14-0050, DP14-0197, & DVP14-
0195 

Owner: 
Dickson Avenue Holdings 
Ltd., Inc. No. BC0778937  

Address: 

1539-1541 Bedford Ave,  

1507-1511 Dickson Ave, & 

1517-1521 Dickson Ave 

Applicant: Meiklejohn Architects Inc. 

Subject: 
Rezoning Adoption, Development Permit, and Development Variance Permit 
Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential, Medium-Density  

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Zoning Amending Bylaw No. 11051 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit DP14-0197 for Lot 2-4, District 
Lot 141, ODYD, Plan 13608, located on 1539-1541 Bedford Ave, 1507-1511 Dickson Ave, & 1517-
1521 Dickson Ave, Kelowna, BC, subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. That the applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit DVP14-0195 for Lots 2-
4, District Lot 141, ODYD, Plan 13608, located on 1539-1541 Bedford Ave, 1507-1511 Dickson Ave, 
& 1517-1521 Dickson Ave, Kelowna, BC, subject to the following: 

 

163



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 2 

 
Section 13.11.6 (d) RM5 Development Regulations:   
To vary the front yard setback for a patio from 1.5m required to 1.0m proposed. 
 
Section 13.11.6 (e) RM5 Development Regulations:   
To vary the side yard setback for the parkade from 4.5m required to 1.5m proposed. 
 
Section 13.11.6 (f) RM5 Development Regulations:   
To vary the rear yard setback for the parkade from 9.0m required to 3.0m proposed. 
 
Section 13.11.6 (b) RM5 Development Regulations:   
To vary the site coverage of building from 40% required to 66.3% proposed. 
 
Section 13.11.6 (b) RM5 Development Regulations:   
To vary the site coverage of buildings, driveways & parking from 65% required to 78.5% proposed. 
 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To review the form and character Development Permit for a multi-family apartment building, and 
to consider five variances to the Zoning Bylaw. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff supports the proposed Development Permit and Development Variance Permit. The project 
meets many objectives of the Comprehensive Development Permit Area. The architectural design 
of the building fits within the neighbourhood context including the Landmark Technology Centre, 
Landmark 7, and Mode apartment buildings. The siting of the buildings including ground oriented 
housing units, parking located in the rear, and access located in the rear promotes an 
interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages. The location of the 
project is located within walking distance to a rapid-transit bus stop and promotes alternate 
transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multi-modal linkages. Further, the adjacent 
employment centre (in the Landmark area) will provide opportunities for workers to abandon 
vehicle commutes and reduce traffic congestion.  

Staff and the applicant had many discussions regarding the setback variances. One design goal 
was to minimize the setbacks but achieve significant outdoor amenity space for the micro suite 
and non-micro suite units. To achieve that goal, a single floor parkade was developed with 
outdoor amenity space located on the roof. This parkade creates various setback variances. The 
minimum distance required adjacent to the drainage flume in the rear yard is 3.0 metres for the 
City’s works crews to maintain the flume. Designing to a 3.0 metre setback in the rear yard 
pushes the building forward towards Dickson Ave and creates a small portion (~10 ft2) of patio 
area requires a variance from 1.5 metres to 1.0 metre. Staff expressed concerns to the applicant 
regarding site coverage and noted that the project may be too large for this site. However, the 
goals of the OCP to increase density and encourage redevelopment in this area are the reasons 
that Staff supports the site coverage variances.  

 

 

 

Figure 1 shows the two duplex lots that will not be 
developed as part of this project. These two lots 

Subject Property 

164



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 3 

 
could potentially re-develop to a higher density but would likely be limited to a townhouse form 
due to their lot sizes. This would provide good transitions in height to the adjacent development 
in the neighbourhood.  

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation prior to first reading by individually contacting the neighbours as 
described in the attached Schedule ‘A’.  

 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing a 90 unit rental apartment building on the subject properties. Out of 
the proposed 90 units, 44 units will be micro-suite units. Micro-suite units are defined as 
residential units smaller than 29 m2. All micro-suite units are Development Cost Charges (DCCs) 
exempt as per the Local Government Act. The applicant has applied for and has gained approval 
from the City’s housing grant program to fund $230,000 (~38.5%) of their DCC amount that 
applies to the remainder 46 dwelling units. Further, the applicant is applying for a Revitalization 
Tax Exemption for $212,840 over 10 years. Council will receive a Revitalization Tax Exemption 
report at a subsequent Council meeting. This will occur as soon as the applicant has submitted a 
building permit and has completed the conditions of the Development Permit and Development 
Variance Permit should they be approved. 

The proposed 4 ½ storey multi-family building will provide ground-oriented townhouse units on 
the first floor, similar in scale, proportion, and materials to the MODE development built in 2008. 
Vehicle access to the site is proposed from Bedford Avenue, thus avoiding placing vehicle 
interactions on the busy Dickson Avenue frontage.  A dedicated loading space has been identified 
on-site to facilitate move-ins and move-outs which addresses concerns identified by Council at 
Public Hearing. The loading space identified along Dickson Avenue has been eliminated from the 
Development Permit drawings. 

The proposed variances include site coverage to allow additional percentage of the lot to be built 
upon with building, structures, and parking, as well as setback variances to allow for the parkade 
structure to be built closer to the property lines. 

4.2 Site Context 

The site area is approximately 4,450 m2 and is located within the Landmark Tech Centre 
neighbourhood. The subject property is designated MRM (Multiple Residential – Medium Density) 
and the lots are within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The properties each contained three 
duplex dwellings but they have all been demolished. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as 
follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

South RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Residential 

West 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

Residential 

Subject Property Map: 1539-1541 Bedford Ave, 1507-1511 Dickson Ave, & 1517-1521 Dickson Ave 

Figure 1 
Highlighted Properties 

165



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 4 

 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Height 18.0 m / 4.5 storeys 14.3 m / 4.5 storeys 

Front Yard (north) 
6.0 m 

1.5 m for ground oriented housing 
> 6.0 m to the town house bldg 

1.0 m for a small portion of a deck  

Side Yard (east) 
4.5 m for flanking portion 

4.0 m for non-flanking portion 
5.8 m for flanking portion 

12.6 m for non-flanking portion 

Side Yard (west) 
4.5 m (up to 2 ½ storeys) 
7.0 m (above 2 ½ storeys) 

4.5 m to townhouses 
7.0 m to apartments 
1.5 m to parkade  

Rear Yard (south) 9.0 m 
9.0 m to apartments 
3.0 m to parkade  

Site coverage of buildings  40 % 66.3 %  

Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
65 % 78.5 %  

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
104 parking stalls 104 parking stalls 

Minimum Bicycle Parking 
Requirements 

Class 1: 45 bikes 
Class 2: 9 bikes 

Class 1: 45 bikes 
Class 2: 10 bikes 

166



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 5 

 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 
Private Open Space 1,115 m2 1,899 m2 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the front yard setback for the decks from  1.5 m to 1.0 m. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the side yard setback for the parkade from  4.5 m to 1.5 m. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the rear yard setback for the parkade from  9.0 m to 3.0 m. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the site coverage of buildings from 40% to 66.3%. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the site coverage of buildings, driveways, & parking from 65% to 78.5%. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

Relevant Development Permit Guidelines 

Ch14 / S1.6 - Provide generous outdoor spaces, including rooftops, balconies, patios and 
courtyards, to allow residents to benefit from the favourable Okanagan weather; 
 
Ch.14 / S2.3 - Design new multi-storey buildings to transition in height where the OCP land use 
designation provides for smaller structures on adjoining lots; 
 
Ch.14 / S.3.2 - Develop visual and physical connections between the public street and private 
buildings (e.g. patios and spill-out activity, views to and from active interior spaces, awnings and 
canopies); 
 
Ch.14 / S.4.2 - Ensure developments are sensitive to and compatible with the massing of the 
established and/or future streetscape; 
 
Ch.14 / S.4.2 - Design for human scale and visual interest in all building elevations. This can be 
achieved principally by giving emphasis to doors and windows and other signs of human 
habitation relative to walls and building structure; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.8 - Locate parking areas to the rear of buildings, internal to the building, or below 
grade; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.12 - Avoid vehicle access from arterial and collector roads and from those roads with 
a prominent streetscape; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.12 - Incorporate decks, balconies and common outdoor amenity spaces into 
developments; 
                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

167



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 6 

 
6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

a) Development Demolition permits are required for any existing structures 

b) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

c) Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. 
The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application.  

d) A Hoarding permit is required and protection of the public from the staging area and the 
new building area during construction. Location of the staging area and location of any 
cranes should be established at time of DP. 

e) A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 

o Guards are required for all exterior decks and stairwells. The drawings 
provided don’t clearly identify these requirements, but will be reviewed at 
time of building permit application. The appearance of these guards may 
affect the form and character of the building 

o Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in 
the code analysis by the architect. 

o Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and 
should be reflected in the plans if required.  

f) A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 
time of building permit application. This property falls within the Mill Creek flood plain 
bylaw area and compliance is required. Minimum building elevations are required to be 
established prior to the release of the Development Permit. This minimum Geodetic 
elevation is required for all habitable spaces including parking garages. This building may 
be designed to low, which may affect the form and character of the building. 
Development Engineering Department. 

g) We strongly recommend that the developer have his professional consultants review and 
prepare solutions for potential impact of this development on adjacent properties. Any 
damage to adjacent properties is a civil action which does not involve the city directly. 
The items of potential damage claims by adjacent properties are items like settlement of 
foundations (preload), damage to the structure during construction, additional snow drift 
on neighbour roofs, excessive noise from mechanical units, vibration damage during 
foundation preparation work etc. 

h) Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure room(s). 
The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how these rating will be 
achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

i) An exit analysis is required as part of the code analysis at time of building permit 
application. The exit analysis is to address travel distances within the units, number of 
required exits per area, door swing direction, handrails on each side of exit stairs, width 
of exits etc. 

j) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are 
being applied to this structure at time of permit application. 

168



DP14-0197 & DVP14-0195 – Page 7 

 
6.2 Development Engineering 

 All offsite infrastructure and service upgrades are addressed in the zoning report (Z14-
0050). 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 26th 2014 
Date of Public consultation:  November 25th 2014 
Date of First Reading:  January 19th 2015 
Date of Supplemental Report to Council: February 2nd 2015 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading: February 17th 2015 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner   
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Applicant Rationale 
Neighbourhood Consultation 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

 Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

 Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 
o Colour Board 

 
 

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutse - April 14 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - April 14 Tuesday Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11079 Z15-0003 605 Wallace Road.pdf
	4.2 BL11077 - OCP14-0002 - Amendment to OCP Bylaw No. 10500.pdf
	4.3 BL11082 - TA14-0001 - Amendment to Section 15-Industrial Zones.pdf
	6.1 Bernard Ave 293 297 Report LL15-0002.pdf
	6.1 Bernard Ave 293 297 Attachments LL15-0002.pdf
	6.2 Bernard Ave 267-271 Report LL15-0004.pdf
	6.2 Bernard Ave 267 271 Attachments LL15-0004.pdf
	6.3 Pandosy 2986 3030 Report LL14-0017.pdf
	6.3 Pandosy St 2986 3030 Attachments LL14-0017.pdf
	7.1 Bothe Rd 1290 Report DVP15-0014.pdf
	7.1 Bothe Rd 1290 Attachments DVP5-0014.pdf
	7.2 Bernard Ave 845 Report DVP15-0046.pdf
	7.2 Bernard Ave 845 Attachments DVP15-0046.pdf
	7.3 DVP15-0037 Report to Council.pdf
	7.3 Guisachan Place 1480 Attachments DVP15-0037.pdf
	7.3 DVP15-0037 - DVPermit (15-04-02).pdf
	7.4 Sutherland Ave Report DP15-0033 DVP15-0034.pdf
	7.4 Sutherland Ave 1502 1506 Attachments.pdf
	7.5 Richter St 2422 Report DVP15-0039.pdf
	7.5 Richter St 2422 Attachments DVP15-0039.docx.pdf
	7.6 BL11051 Z14-0050 Bedford Avenue and Dickson Avenue(1).pdf
	7.7 Report DP14-0197 and DVP14-0195 and Adoption Dickson and Bedford .pdf
	7.7 Dickson Bedford Ave Attachments DP14-0197 DVP14-0195.pdf
	7.7 DP14-0197 DVP14-0195 Permit.pdf

